
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, September 1, 2015 

 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



   

Town Cou
09/01/20
 

Tue
(Times

Mayor D
Vice-Ma
Councilm
Councilm
Councilm

 

1. OPE
 

a. C
 
b. P
 
c. A
 
 

2. CON
 

a. M
 

b. In
 

c. S
an
 

  TOW
 

uncil Agenda 
015 

esday, S
s established

later than

David Brown
ayor Ronald D
man Tom Go
man Ryan Li
man Jim Roc

NING 

Call to Order 

ledge of All

Approval of A

NSENT AGE

Minutes: Aug

nvoice from 

et Special T
nd Budget)  

WN COUNCIL

Town
To

Septemb
d by Resolut
n 10:30 p.m.

ning (Seat 4) 
D. Jarriel (S

oltzené (Seat
iang (Seat 3)
ckett (Seat 2)

& Roll Call

legiance & In

Agenda 

ENDA  

gust 8, 2015 

Goren, Cher

Town Counc
 

L MEETING A
P

 
n of Lox
own Co
ber 1, 2
tion No. 201
., which can

TO
15

           
Seat 1)
t 5) 
) 
) 

PUBLIC N

l 

nvocation –

rof, Doody &

cil Meeting f

 

AGENDA, TUES
Page 1 of 3  

 

xahatch
ouncil M
2015 - 7

4-08… com
n be extende
WN HALL
55 F Road 

   
 

Town Mana
Town Clerk
Town Attor
 

 
NOTICE/AG

 

Mayor Brow

& Ezrol, P.A

for Septemb

SDAY, SEPTE

 
hee Grov
Meeting
7:00 p.m
mmencing at
ed by motion

ager William
k  
rney Michae

GENDA 

wning 

A. 

ber 29, 2015

MBER 1, 201

ves 

m. to 10
t 7:00 p.m., 
n of the Cou

m F. Underw

el D. Cirullo,

5 (Adopting 

5 

:30 p.m
and ending 

uncil.) 

wood, II 

, Jr. 

of Final Mi

Tentative 

Subject to

 

 

m. 
no 

illage 

 

 Revision 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 
      Page 2 of 3  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
09/01/2015 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS  
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS - None 
 

6. RESOLUTIONS 
 

a. Resolution No. 2015-26  (Final Hearing Establishing Residential Solid Waste 
Fees) 
 

b. Resolution No. 2015-29  (Amending Budget for FY2015) 
 
7. ORDINANCES – None  
 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues 

concerning the Town. 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS –  

 
a. Discussion and direction for Town Management – Severn Trent Letter of 

Withdrawal Dated: August 25, 2015 
 

b. Discussion and direction for selecting Town Attorney 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Discussion and direction regarding performing code enforcement services 
 

b.  Authorization to terminate Agreement with Palm Beach County – Land 
Development Review 
 

 
11. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel:   
 

1.  Discussion and direction on payment due to the LGWCD for 
services rendered on grading Town road Outstanding Bills 

 
2. Maintenance easement Red Clover Nursery (B Road and 6th 

Court North) 
 

3. Town Attorney Extension from 30 to 60 days 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 
      Page 3 of 3  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
09/01/2015 
 

 
 
 

 
12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public  
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Council Members 

 
13.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for September 15, 2015. 
 
 

Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This must 
be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public comments, you may 
only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public comments, you may address any 
item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any person who decides to appeal any 
decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose, may 
need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 
hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Minutes 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



   

Town Cou
08/04/20
 

T

Mayor D
Vice-Ma
Councilm
Councilm
Councilm

 

1. OPE
 

a. C
              

M
m
B
w
C

 
b. P
 
c. A

T
d
ex
 
C
re

       

  TO
 

uncil Agenda 
015 

Tuesday

David Brown
ayor Ronald D
man Tom Go
man Ryan Li
man Jim Roc

NING 

Call to Order 

Mayor Brown
members we
Browning.  C
were Town 
Consultant Jim

ledge of All

Approval of A
Town Manag

irection rega
xisting roads

Councilman R
ecommended

OWN COUNC

Town
To

, Augus

155 F Ro

ning (Seat 4) 
D. Jarriel (S

oltzené (Seat
iang (Seat 3)
ckett (Seat 2)

& Roll Call

ning called 
re present: 

Councilman 
Manager B

m Fleischma

legiance & In

Agenda 
ger Underwo
arding imple
s or forward

Rockett Mov
d.  The vote 

CIL MEETING 
P

 
n of Lox
own Co
st 4, 20

TO
oad, Loxaha

           
Seat 1)
t 5) 
) 
) 

M

l 

the meeting
 Tom Golt
Ryan Liang

Bill Underw
ann, and Act

nvocation –

od requested
ementation o
d on newly im

ved, Seconde
on the motio

 

MINUTES, TU
Page 1 of 8  

 

xahatch
ouncil M
15 - 7:0
WN HALL

atchee Grove
   
 

Town Mana
Town Clerk
Town Plann
Town Attor

 
MINUTES 

 

g to order at 
tzene, Ron 
g was absent
wood, Town
ting Town C

Mayor Brow

d the Counci
of Speed Hum
mproved roa

ed by Counc
on was unan

UESDAY, AUG

 
hee Grov
Meeting
00 p.m. 

es, Florida 33

ager William
k  
ning Consult
rney Michae

7:00 PM.  
Jarriel, Jim

nt from the m
n Attorney 

Clerk Perla U

wning 

il move item
mp Distance
ads.” to Item 

cilman Jarrie
nimous, 5/0.

GUST 4, 2015 

ves 

to 10:3

3470 

m F. Underw

tant Jim Flei
el D. Cirullo,

Upon roll c
m Rocket, an

meeting.  Al
Jacob Hor

Underwood. 

m 10.b. “Disc
e Policy retro

4.b  

el to amend t

0 p.m.

wood, II 

ischmann 
, Jr. 

call the follo
nd Mayor D
lso in attend
rowitz, Plan

cussion and 
oactively on 

the Agenda 

 

owing 
David 
dance 
nning 

as 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 2 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Invoice from Goren, Cherof, Doody & Ezrol, P.A. 
 
Councilman Jarriel Moved, Seconded by Councilman Rockett to approve the Consent 
Agenda.   The vote on the motion was unanimous, 5/0. 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Virginia Standish, 15410 North Road - made comments in regards to RFP for Town 
management services 
 
Todd McClendon, 3481 D Road - made comments in regards to RFP for Town management 
services and inquired if the Town Council will be bidding the ILA included in the Agenda. 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS –  
 
a. Engineering and Construction Schedule for B Road Improvements –  

Randy Wertepny, Keshavarz and Associates  
 
Town Manager Underwood introduced Randy Wertepny to discuss the Schedule for B 
Road Improvements.  Mr. Wertepny reviewed the time frame for the project.  He advised 
that there was a delay with respect to the surveying, but feels that the project will be still 
be on schedule as planned.   
 
Mr. Wertepny also discussed with the Council the idea of approaching the landowners on 
B Road with respect to dedicating a ten (10) foot easement for drainage to provide catch 
basins to pipe across the road to the canal.   
 
With respect to the bid phase and contract award, Mr. Wertepny advised that bid 
advertising will be done for two (2) consecutive Sundays. Time frame for the bid process 
and approval by Town Council is anticipated to take 2 ½ months.  Additionally, he 
advised that a 6 month construction period is anticipated that will provide a two (2) 
month window before the deadline as per the Contract with the three entities.  Finally he 
advised the Town Council the schedule is based on business day rather that calendar 
days. 
 
Councilman Ryan Liang entered meeting at 7:15 pm. 
 
Upon question from Councilman Rockett, Mr. Wertepny advised that he feels they will 
be able to meet the schedule.  He advised that their is fluff in the construction phase 
portion of the schedule, but in the bid phase the only concern is if the matter would need 
to go to the Town Council on more than one occasion.   
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 3 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

Vice Mayor Jarriel advised that he is concerned that construction is scheduled to begin 
during hurricane season, and he would hope that the project would be moved up to 
complete the job before the season begins.  Upon question, Mr. Wertepny advised that he 
was working with the LGWCD Administrator and their attorney.   
 
Mayor Browning advised that he thought the residents would be receptive.  Vice Mayor 
Jarriel Moved, and Seconded by Councilman Liang to authorize the Engineers to contact 
property owners with respect to drainage easements. 
 

b. Discussion and direction regarding implementation of Speed Hump Distance Policy 
retroactively on existing roads or forward on newly improved roads. 
 
Upon question from Vice Mayor Jarriel, Randy Wertepny advised that the Town’s 
engineers recommended the placement of speed tables at a distance of 500 feet.  Vice 
Mayor Jarriel stated that the Town Council preferred speed tables, Speed Limit of 30 
miles per hour, but would prefer the distance between tables from 800 to 1000 feet.   
 
With respect to the distance requested between speed tables, Mr. Wertepny advised that 
there are factors to weigh when making a decision.  Councilman Rockett advised that he 
feels the Town has added safety to the roadway by going from dirt to OGEM.  
 
Councilman Rockett Moved, Seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel to approve the use of speed 
tables (specifically like those on the Sycamore).  Mayor Browning stated that he would 
prefer the distance between the speed tables at 500 feet.  He also expressed concerns for 
residents living on B Road when exiting their driveways onto B Road.  
 
Joe Lelonek, Atlantic Land Sales thanked the Town Manager and Engineer for the update 
and encouraged monthly basis to which helps accelerate the project.   
 
Ken Johnson, 15409 Collecting Canal Road recommended that the Town Council keep 
the current distance of 500 feet. 
 
Dennis Lipp – 13402 North Road reminded the Town Council that one of the selling 
points for OGEM was that water would not settle on the road, and that was not true.  
 
Jo Sciliano, B Road and Laura Danoskwi, E Road had questions with respect to road 
width, easement and catch basis placement how that may affect horses. 
 
Jorge Perez – B Road 
Expressed his concerns about the speed limit for the road and prefers speed humps, and 
pointed out that on Los Angeles near his home there is a bus stop and would like to see 
slow down the traffic in that area. 
 
Town Attorney Horowitz requested authorization to prepare a Resolution for Council 
consideration to include the schedule for the B Road improvements.  Councilman Rockett 
Moved, and Seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel to authorize the preparation of a Resolution 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 4 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

for Council consideration at the August 18, 2015 meeting.  The vote on the motion was 
unanimous, 5/0. 
 
Upon question from Vice Mayor Jarriel, Mr. Wertepny advised that the bidding process 
will include all aspects of the project.   
 
Councilman Rockett advised that he feels that all speed humps already in place should be 
addressed and that the Town should pay to have them removed. 
 
Councilman Goltzene expressed his concerns with respect to removal and the problems 
associated with the removal.  Feels we need more information before the Town Council 
can make any decisions.  Vice Mayor Jarriel stated that before the Town Council starts 
taking speed humps out, we should first know what the distance will be on B Road.  
 
Mayor Browning advised that the residents along Folsom have urged the County to 
consider installation of speed controlling devises to slow traffic. He has concerned about 
B Road if the Town makes it to smooth and too nice and there will be speeders using the 
road.  He suggested that the Town inquire into cost to convert the existing speed humps 
into tables.  
 
Dennis Lipp, North Road questioned the Town Attorney about the national standards for 
speed humps on the distance especially when a canal is next to the road.  Attorney 
Horowitz stated he would prefer not to comment, but advised that when there are 
deviations from the standard that would be taken into consideration if a problem was to 
occur.   

 
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS 

 
a. Financial Report – June 2015 - Lung Chiu, Chair of the Finance Advisory and Audit 

Committee (FAAC)    
 
Town Council reviewed report provided by Chair Chiu that included a recap of the July 
27, 2015 FAAC Meeting including approval of the June 2015 Financial Reports as 
presented.       
 
Doreen Baxter, North Road had questions several over budgeted items in Legislative 
department and election expenses, and also inquired about several Code Enforcement 
open cases that have HOLDS on Town Council direction.    
 
Todd McClendon, D Road questioned Election overruns.  

 
6. ORDINANCES - None 

 
7. RESOLUTIONS  

 
RESOLUTIONS: QUASI-JUDICIAL  

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 5 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

 
a. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-22 (Loxahatchee Groves Commons Site Plan) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE LOXAHATCHEE GROVES COMMONS SITE 
PLAN AMENDMENT, FOR LAND OWNED BY ERNEST G. SIMON, AS TRUSTEE OF 
TRUSTS “A” AND “B” U/W/O ALEXANDER ABRAHAM SIMON, CONSISTING OF 21.73 
ACRES MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT  THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SOUTHERN 
BOULEVARD AND “B” ROAD  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY 
DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 
Town Attorney Horowitz read the title to Resolution 2015-22, and reviewed the procedures for   
for the Quasi-judicial proceedings.  Planning Consultant Fleischmann advised that the item was 
properly advertised as required.  Town Attorney Horowitz sworn in individuals that would be 
addressing Town Council on this matter.   
 
Joe Lelonek, Atlantic Land Sales  advised the Council that this is a site plan amendment with 
some small changes to include landscaping, a change on one of the out parcel from a bank to  
another fast food restaurants, and LED outside lighting.  He also advised that the Town has a 
policy that requires all parking lot lighting must be turned off at 11 pm.  He requested that there 
is a need for some security lighting in the parking area over night to provide security, and would 
like the Town Council to consider this code provision.   
 
Planning Consultant Jim Fleischmann advised notice was advertised in the Palm Beach Post on 
July 24, 2015, notices were posted on the property, and property owners received 
correspondence on this item.  He further advised that the Town’s Planning & Zoning Board 
approved the amendment unanimously to include additional conditions that have been submitted 
by the developer with respect to improving traffic flow around Building G on the site plan, and 
signage around parcel 3 to improve flow.   
 
Mayor Browning questioned the traffic backing up into the area may cause congestion.   
 
Mr. Fleishman reviewed the information on the Site Plan Amendment starting on page 36 of the 
Agenda that detail Site Plan Changes, Landscape Plan Changes, Photometric Plan Changes, and 
Civil Engineering.   
 
Mr. Fleishmann also reviewed the Conditions of Approval in Attachment C on page 41 of the 
Agenda with the Town Council that included general, land use and site planning, architectural, 
engineering, land clearing and landscaping, exterior lighting, Palm Tran, parking and loading, 
signs, and utilities and services.     

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 6 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

 
Mr. Fleishmann concluded by providing the Town Council with staff finding and 
recommendation as outlined on page 29 of the Agenda that recommends approval of Resolution 
No. 2015-22 subject to the Conditions of Approval presented in Attachment C.   
 
Bill Louda questioned the gas station convenience store, fast food, alcohol sales, and low 
lighting in the plan.  Stated that he feels the Town will need a dedicated police officer.  
Questioned what Everglades Farm Equipment and Palms West Plaza do for lighting. 
 
Ken Johnson addressed his concerns with a gas station/convenient store operation, drive through 
restaurant, Dunkin Donuts, and questioned limiting the hours of operation as many convenient 
stores are open 24 hours.     
 
Pat Johnson inquired if Mr. Lelonek could trace the traffic flow on the Site Plan tracing the 
traffic flow.  Mr. Lelonek advised that the traffic flow was selected to ensure no bottleneck for 
the College and their Project.  He also addressed the hours of operation or the gas 
station/convenience store.  While he did advised it would be open 24 hours, he also informed the 
Town that a supervisor is required on duty at the store.  With respect to the lighting, he advised 
that down turned lighting, shoebox type of lights would be used to keep the site safer and would 
have no adverse effect on surrounding properties.   
 
Mayor Browning suggested the Town Council should consider reviewing this in the ULDCs for 
the future projects and making appropriate changes to code.  Mr. Fleishmann reminded the Town 
Council that the adjacent parcel is also commercial, and would have no direct impact to 
residential areas.   
 
Todd McClendon asked about an additional outlet onto Southern Boulevard, and the floor/area 
ratio.  
 
Councilman Rockett Moved, and Seconded by Vice Mayor Jarriel to approve Resolution No. 
2015-22.  The vote on the motion was unanimous, 5/0.   

 
8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 

 
a. Agenda Item Report (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues concerning    
      the Town. 

 
 Town Council should begin discussions with the Palm Beach County 

Commission relative to traffic calming devices for Folsom   Road for FY2017. 
             

 Town reimbursed Waste Pro a total of $14,900. 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 7 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

 
 Has been unable to touch base with Mr. Carter relating to the Okeechobee and D 

Road Traffic Control Sign. 
 
 Lien filed with Palm Beach County on the property located at 1666 C Road. 

 
 Special Events extension for property at 2650 has been placed on the next 

Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Agenda.   
 
Councilman Rockett questioned the Manager’s authorization to refund Waste Pro 
without Town Council approval.  Councilman Rockett advised that he would like an 
opportunity to provide some information about the items that were not correct.  
 
Councilman Goltzene and Mayor Browning both stated that there is a problem when 
addresses reflected are incorrect, and fines assessed for properties that do not pay for 
residential garbage.  
 
Doreen Baxter commented on the Waste Monitor and his contract.   

 
9. OLD BUSINESS – NONE 

 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS –  
 

a.  Approval of Town-District Funding ILA for District Road Maintenance – Fiscal       
 Year 2016 
 
Vice Mayor Jarriel Moved, and Seconded by Councilman Rockett to approve the 
ILA for District Road Maintenance for FY2016.  The vote on the motion was 4/1, 
with Councilman Goltzene voting no. 
 
Doreen Baxter requested that the Town ensure that invoicing is accurate and 
proper. 
 
Mayor Browning advised that he has received comments from the public about 
District billing not being accurate.   
 
Councilman Goltzene also questioned the accuracy of the district billing for Town 
Road Maintenance.   
 
Todd McClendon advised that no RFP was issued for the approved ILA with the 
District. 

   
11. COUNCIL REPORTS 

 
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

  TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, AUGUST 4, 2015 
      Page 8 of 8  

 

 
Town Council Agenda 
08/04/2015 
 

 
12. CLOSING COMMENTS 

 
a. Public 

 
Ken Johnson, Collecting Canal Road advised that all traffic signs between B and C Roads 
on Collecting Canal Road have been removed and asked when signs would be replaced.  
Vice Mayor Jarriel questioned when signs could be ordered and if the LGWCD be 
allowed to install signs. 
 
Bill Louda, E Road requested Vice Mayor Jarriel, and Councilmen Rockett, and Liang 
explain the reason for not extending the Management’s contract.   
 
Todd McClendon, D Road addressed the 24/hr. gas/convenient store, and advised that the 
floor/area ratio approved tonight was at a higher level than allowed. 

  
b. Town Attorney 

 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
13.   ADJOURNMENT 

    
 There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning 
adjourned the meeting at 9:50 pm. 
 
 
 
________________________________  ___________________________ 

      Perla D. Underwood, Acting City Clerk  David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(These minutes were approved at the September 1, 2015 Meeting) 
 
 

 
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 2.b. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

Attorney Invoice 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.a 

RESOLUTION N. 2015-26 

Final Hearing Establishing Residential Solid Waste Fees 

 

 

 

 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 1 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-026 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, 
RELATING TO THE PROVISION OF RESIDENTIAL 
SOLID WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES IN THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA; APPROVING 
THE ASSESSMENT RATE FOR RESIDENTIAL SOLID 
WASTE COLLECTION SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEAR 
2015-2016; IMPOSING A RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE 
COLLECTION ASSESSMENT AGAINST ASSESSED 
PROPERTY LOCATED WITHIN THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
BEGINNING ON OCTOBER 1, 2015; APPROVING THE 
ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, enacted 

Ordinance No. 2008-05, on July 1, 2008, which authorized the imposition of a Residential Solid 

Waste Collection Assessment, pursuant to the procedures contained within the Town’s Code of 

Ordinances (collectively, “the Ordinance”) for the provision of Solid Waste Collection Services 

for single-family residential properties that receive residential solid waste collection services 

within the Town, and provided for findings of special benefit and the method of apportionment 

of the Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment; and 

 WHEREAS, the imposition of a Solid Waste Collection Assessment for Solid Waste 

Collection Services for each Fiscal Year is an equitable and efficient method of allocating and 

apportioning Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessed Costs among parcels of Assessed 

Property; and, 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 2 
 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council desires to impose a Residential Solid Waste Collection 

Assessment within the Town for the Fiscal Year beginning on October 1, 2015 using the tax bill 

collection method; and 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council, on July 21, 2015, adopted Resolution No. 2015-23 (the 

"2015 Preliminary Assessment Resolution"), referencing the Residential Solid Waste Collection 

Services to be provided to Assessed Property, describing the method of apportioning the 

Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessed Cost to compute the Residential Solid Waste 

Collection Assessment for Solid Waste Collection Services against Assessed Property, 

estimating a rate of assessment, and directing the preparation of the Assessment Roll and 

provision of the notice to the affected landowners; and 

 WHEREAS, in order to impose the Residential Solid Waste Collection Special 

Assessment for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2015, the Ordinance requires the Town 

Council to adopt an Annual Rate Resolution during its budget adoption process for each Fiscal 

Year, which establishes the rate of assessment and approves the Assessment Roll for the 

upcoming Fiscal Year, with such amendments as the Town Council deems appropriate, after 

hearing comments and objections of all interested parties; and 

 WHEREAS, the updated Assessment Roll has heretofore been made available for 

inspection by the public, as required by the Ordinance; and 

 WHEREAS, notice of public hearing has been provided as required by the Ordinance, as 

evidenced by the Affidavit of Mailing, attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, and the proof of 

publication attached hereto as Exhibit “B”; and 

 WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on September 1, 2015, and comments and 

objections of all interested parties have been heard and considered. 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 3 
 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

 SECTION 1.  The aforementioned “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified as true and 

correct and incorporated herein.   

 SECTION 2.  AUTHORITY.  This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of 

the Ordinance, the 2015 Preliminary Assessment Resolution, sections 166.021 and 166.041, 

Florida Statutes, and other applicable provisions of law.   

 SECTION 3. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION.  This Resolution constitutes 

the Annual Assessment Resolution as defined in the Ordinance.  All capitalized terms in this 

Resolution shall have the meanings defined in the Ordinance and the 2015 Preliminary 

Assessment Resolution. 

 SECTION 4. IMPOSITION OF RESIDENTIAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION 
ASSESSMENT. 

 
 (A) The parcels of Assessed Property described in the Assessment Roll, as updated 

and which is hereby approved, are hereby found to be specially benefitted by the provision of the 

Solid Waste Collection Services described in the 2015 Preliminary Assessment Resolution, in 

the amount of the Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment set forth in the Assessment 

Roll, a copy of which was present or available for inspection at the above-referenced public 

hearing and is incorporated herein by reference.  It is hereby ascertained, determined, and 

declared that each parcel of Assessed Property within the Town will be specifically benefitted by 

the Town's provision of Residential Solid Waste Collection, facilities and programs in an amount 

not less than the Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment of such parcel, computed in the 

manner set forth in the 2015 Preliminary Assessment Resolution.  Adoption of this Annual 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 4 
 

Assessment Resolution constitutes a legislative determination that all assessed parcels derive a 

special benefit, as set forth in the Ordinance and the 2015 Preliminary Assessment Resolution, 

from the Residential Solid Waste Collection Services to be provided, and a legislative 

determination that the Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessments are fairly and reasonably 

apportioned among the properties that receive the special benefit as set forth in the 2015 

Preliminary Assessment Resolution. 

 (B) The method of computing the Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment 

described in the 2015 Preliminary Assessment Resolution, as modified, amended, and 

supplemented herein, is hereby approved. 

 (C) For the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2015, the estimated Residential Solid 

Waste Collection Assessed Cost to be assessed is $394,800.00, which amount may be corrected.  

The Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment to be assessed and apportioned among 

benefitted parcels pursuant to the Cost Apportionment and Parcel Apportionment to generate the 

estimated Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessed Costs for the 2015-2016 Fiscal Year, 

commencing October 1, 2015, is hereby established at $300.00 annually, per Dwelling 

Unit/Billing Unit.  This assessment rate is hereby approved.  It is hereby determined that the 

assessed properties will receive a benefit from solid waste collection services in an amount not 

less than the amount they are assessed.  Except as otherwise provided herein, the Residential 

Solid Waste Collection Assessment for Residential Solid Waste Collection Services in the 

amounts set forth in the Assessment Roll, as herein approved, are hereby levied and imposed on 

all parcels of Assessed Property described in the Assessment Roll.  

 (D) The Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment shall constitute a lien upon 

the Assessed Property so assessed equal in rank and dignity with the liens of all state, county, 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 5 
 

district or municipal taxes and other non-ad valorem Assessment.  Except as otherwise provided 

by law, such lien shall be superior in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims, until paid.   

 (E) The Assessment Roll as herein approved, together with the correction of any 

errors or omissions, shall be delivered to the Tax Collector for collection using the tax bill 

collection method in the manner prescribed by the Ordinance. 

 SECTION 5. CONFIRMATION OF PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT 

RESOLUTION. The Preliminary Assessment Resolution adopted July 21, 2015, except where 

in conflict herein, is confirmed. 

 SECTION 6.  EFFECT ON ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION.  The adoption of this 

Annual Assessment Resolution shall be the final adjudication of the issues presented (including, 

but not limited to, the determination of special benefit and fair apportionment to the Assessed 

Property, the method of apportionment and assessment, the rate of assessment, the Assessment 

Roll and the levy and lien of the Residential Solid Waste Collection Assessment), unless proper 

steps shall be initiated in a court of competent jurisdiction to secure relief within 20 calendar 

days from the date of this Annual Assessment Resolution.   

 SECTION 7. SEVERABILITY. If any clause, section or other part of this Resolution 

shall be held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such 

unconstitutional or invalid part shall be considered as eliminated and in no way affecting the 

validity of the other provisions of this Resolution. 

 SECTION 8. CONFLICTS.  That all prior Resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict 

herewith, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.   

 SECTION 9. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Annual Assessment Resolution shall take 

effect immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 6 
 

 
 RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, Florida, this 1st day of September, 2015. 
      
       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
ATTEST:      FLORIDA 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
TOWN CLERK     Mayor David Browning  
   
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  ________________________________ 
       Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel   
  
 
____________________________   _______________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Tom Goltzene 
       
  
       ________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
       
       ________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 7 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING 
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

{00091743.1 1574-0702400 } 9 
 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.b 

RESOLUTION No. 2015-29 

Amending Budget for FY2015 

 

 

 
 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-29 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT  FOR  THE  TOWN’S  BUDGET  FOR  THE  FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2015; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 166.241(4), Florida Statutes, the Town may amend its 

adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2015, at any 

time within a fiscal year, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Management has concluded a review of the budget and expenditures 

during the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2015, and is 

recommending amendments to the Town’s budget as set forth in Exhibit A” hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Each "WHEREAS" clause set  forth above is true and correct  and herein 
 
incorporated by this reference. 
 

Section 2. The Town’s adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014, 
 
and ending September 30, 2015, is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 

expressly made a part hereof. 

Section 3. If any clause, section, or other part of this Resolution shall be held by any court 
 
of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid part shall be 

considered as eliminated and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

Resolution. 

Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



to the extent of such conflict. 
 

Section 5. This  Resolution  shall become  effective  immediately upon  its passage  and 
 
adoption. 
 

PASSED  AND  ADOPTED  BY  THE  TOWN  OF  LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES, 
FLORIDA, THIS   DAY OF SEPTEMBER 1, 2015. 

 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA 

 
Perla D. Underwood, Acting  
Town Clerk 

 

 

Mayor David Browning 
 

 
 

  Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel 
                                                                                       
                                                                                         ________________________________________ 
________________ Council Member Tom Goltzene 

 

 
 

 APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:                      Council Member Ryan Liang 
 

 
______________________________________ 

 Office of the Town Attorney                                         Council Member Jim Rockett 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



EXHIBIT "A" 
 
(BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 

AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2015) 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

001-311-100-000 AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 217,931          12,500 230,431          
TAXES SUBTOTAL 217,931          12,500 230,431          

001-314-100-000 ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000          20,000 223,000          
001-314-510-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    103,352          (11,052) 92,300            
001-316-200-000 COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000              1,500 6,500              

TAXES SUBTOTAL 311,352          10,448 321,800          

001-323-100-000 FPL FRANCHISE FEE             185,000          6,500 191,500          

001-323-125-000 HAULER LICENSING FEE -                      1,525 1,525              

001-323-300-000 PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE FEE 5,050              1,450 6,500              
001-329-100-000 PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT 2,000              6,700 8,700              

PERMITS, FRANCHISE FEES & SPECIAL SUBTOTAL 192,050          16,175 208,225          

001-335-120-000 STATE REVENUE SHARING         90,689            (1,000) 89,689            
001-335-180-000 HALF CENT SALES TAX           243,375          8,600 251,975          

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE SUBTOTAL 334,064          7,600 341,664          

001-341-000-000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES     4,000              0 4,000              
001-343-349-000 COST RECOVERY FEES 60,000            20,000 80,000            

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 64,000            20,000 84,000            

001-351-100-000 COURT FINES -                      0 -                      
001-354-100-000 CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 300                 6,100 6,400              

JUDGEMENTS, FINES & FORFEITS SUBTOTAL 300                 6,100 6,400              

001-361-100-000 INTEREST                      200               45 245               
001-369-000-000 OTHER MISC INCOME             1,000            (800) 200               

OTHER MISC. REVENUE SUBTOTAL 1,200              (755) 445                 

001-381-305-000 INTER-FUND TRANSFER IN CIP 1,000,000       0 1,000,000       
001-385-100-000 TRANSFER FROM SANITATION FUND -                      
001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE (25,000)         25,000 -                    

OTHER NON-OPERATING SOURCES TOTAL 975,000          25,000            1,000,000       

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 2,095,897     97,068            2,192,965     

MISCELLANEOUS

TAXES

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2014-15

001-511-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 650                 2,000              2,650              
001-511-400-000 TRAVEL 3,000              -                      3,000              
001-511-490-000  POSTAGE & FREIGHT - (Was legal advertising) -                      -                      -                      
001-511-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      1,500              1,800              3,300              
001-511-499-000 OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - New Town Counsel Compensaton 30,000            -                      30,000            
001-511-500-000 EDUCATION AND TRAINING        1,000              100                 1,100              
001-511-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               300                 100                 400                 
001-511-520-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES            300                 500                 800                 
001-511-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   1,935              1,500              3,435              
001-511-820-000 SPECIAL EVENTS/CONTRIBUTIONS 10,000          550                 10,550          

 LEGISLATIVE  TOTAL    48,685          6,550              55,235          

001-512-340-000  OTHER SERVICES 269,653          -                      269,653          
001-512-400-000 TRAVEL 1,500              -                      1,500              
001-512-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES - (Moved to Gen Govt)   -                      -                      -                      
001-512-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT                      1,000              -                      1,000              
001-512-490-000  LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 500                 -                      500                 
001-512-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      944                 -                      944                 
001-512-493-000  ELECTION EXPENSE 8,010              15,000            23,010            
001-512-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               12,000            20,000            32,000            
001-512-521-000 LOXAHATCHEE GROVES C.E.R.T. - (Moved to Gen Govt) -                      -                      -                      

 001-512-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   570               -                     570               
 EXECUTIVE TOTAL 294,177        35,000            329,177        

001-513-320-000 ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING 18,000            -                      18,000            
001-513-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING          1,751              -                      1,751              
001-513-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING             2,000              -                      2,000              
001-513-493-000 ELECTION EXPENSE - (Moved to Executive)              11,919          -                     11,919          

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE TOTAL 33,670          20,000            33,670          

001-514-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         90,000            -                      90,000            
001-514-312-000 LEGAL -COMP PLAN -                     -                    

 LEGAL SERVICES TOTAL 90,000          -                     90,000          

001-515-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    40,000            37,150            77,150            
001-515-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 80,702            (10,000)           70,702            
001-515-343-000 PLANNING & ZONING CONTRACT    20,000            -                      20,000            
001-515-347-000 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN            -                      -                      -                      
001-515-349-000 COST RECOVERY EXPENDITURES 60,000            25,000            85,000            
001-515-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 10,000          -                     10,000          

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND ZONING TOTAL  210,702        -                     262,852        

LEGAL COUNSEL

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE

EXECUTIVE

LEGISLATIVE       

 PLANNING & ZONING

APPROPRIATIONS

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2014-15

001-519-315-000 SPECIAL MAGISTRATE            16,000            (9,000)             7,000              
001-519-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 3,000              (1,000)             2,000              
001-519-354-000 CODE COMPLIANCE 36,000            -                      36,000            
001-519-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 6,100              2,000              8,100              
001-519-420-000 UTILITIES -                      2,400              2,400              
001-519-440-000 RENTALS AND LEASES            34,783            (14,000)           20,783            
001-519-450-000 INSURANCE                     18,000            4,000              22,000            
001-519-460-000 R & M BUILDINGS                     2,100              16,000            18,100            
001-519-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING -                      -                      -                      
001-519-480-000 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES        -                      -                      -                      
001-519-490-000 COMPUTER EQUIP SOFTWARE & HARDWARE REPAIR 5,500              -                      5,500              
001-519-491-000 COMPUTER SERVICES 7,292              26,000            33,292            
001-519-494-000 INSPECTOR GENERAL OFFICE FEE 5,280              -                      5,280              
001-519-610-000 LAND ACQUISITION 27,000            500                 27,500            
001-519-620-000 BUILDINGS 465,000          18,010            483,010          
001-519-820-000  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES CERT -                      -                      -                      
001-519-900-000 TRANSFER TO TRANSPORTATION FUND 2,000              -                      2,000              
001-519-910-000 TRANSFER TO SANITATION FUND -                      -                      -                      
001-519-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -                      -                      -                      
001-519-990-000 CONTINGENCY                   15,524            438,958          454,482          
001-519-998-000 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND-FUND BALANCE 480,500        (480,500)         -                    

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES TOTAL 1,124,079     3,368              1,127,447     

001-521-341-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-PBSO        283,084          283,084          
001-521-342-000 CONTRACTUAL-ADDL PBSO           10,500          10,500          

LAW ENFORCEMENT TOTAL           293,584        -                     293,584        

001-539-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 1,000              -                      1,000              
001-539-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         -                      -                      -                      

 PUBLIC WORKS  TOTAL          1,000              0 1,000              

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,095,897       97,068            2,192,965       

PUBLIC WORKS

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT

LAW ENFORCEMENT

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

101-312-410-000 FIRST LOCAL OPTION FUEL TAX (6 CENT) 250,858       250,858         
101-312-420-000 SECOND LOCAL OPTION FUEL (5 CENT) 117,768       -                   117,768         
101-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                  -                   
101-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE (6 CT) 412,423       (412,423)      -                   

Total Revenue 781,049       (412,423)      368,626         

101-541-467-000 TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS - 6 c 10,000         (4,000)           6,000            
101-541-468-000 TOWN ROADS MAINT. - 6 c 102,059       (60,000)        42,059          
101-541-469-000 ROAD MAINTENANCE DISTRICT - 6 c 93,738         -                   93,738          
101-541-631-000 ROAD AND STREETS - NEW CONSTRUCTION - -                  -                   -                   

101-541-632-000 SPECIAL PROJECTS 60,000           (60,000)          -                    
101-541-633-000 22nd ROAD DITCH           -                  -                   -                   
101-541-634-000 148th TERR BRIDGE(5)/CULVERT  -                  -                   -                   
101-541-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS 515,252       (515,252)      -                   
101-541-990-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (5 CT) -                  117,768       117,768         
101-541-996-000 TRANSFER TO FUND BALANCE (6 CT) -                    109,061         109,061         

Total Expenditure 781,049         (412,423)        368,626         

 APPROPRIATIONS

Transportation Fund
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

305-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                       -                 -                       

305-363-991-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM TRANSPORTATION FUND 555,252            (555,252)    -                       

305-366-305-000 CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS -                       40,000        40,000              

305-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 1,000,000         28,934        1,028,934         

Total Revenue 1,555,252         (486,318)    1,068,934         

305-519-600-000 "B" Road OGEM Improvements 40,000        40,000              

305-541-610-000 SURVEYING TOWN ROADS 90,374              (90,374)      -                       

305-541-620-000 OGEM Collecting Canal Road -                       -                 -                       

305-541-630-000 Okeechobee and D Road Traffic Light 290,944            (290,944)    -                       

305-541-640-000 Town Roads OGEM Projects 25,000              (25,000)      -                       

305-541-650-000 Trails 120,000            (120,000)    -                       

305-541-652-000 D Road to Southern Boulevard -                       -                       

305-541-654-000 Purchase Roads from LGWCD 28,934              28,934              

305-581-001-000 Inter-fund Transfer Out Gen. Fund 1,000,000         1,000,000         

Total Expenditure 1,555,252         (486,318)    1,068,934         

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

405-325-205-000 SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS (1,260 units) 431,846        4,800        436,646       

405-325-206-000 DISCOUNT FEES (11,660)         (1,890)       (13,550)        

405-343-120-000 SWA RECYCLING INCOME 6,700            -                6,700           

405-361-100-000 INTEREST 2,260        2,260           

405-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                    -                   

405-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 14,382          3,640        18,022         

Total Revenue 441,268        8,810        450,078       

405-534-345-000 CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT         15,000          (2,400)       12,600         

405-534-346-000 PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,318            -                4,318           

405-534-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT 300               810           1,110           

405-534-434-000 SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 410,150        18,300       428,450       

405-534-436-000 OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 11,000          (7,900)       3,100           

405-534-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING 500               -                500              

405-534-595-000 TOLG MANAGEMENT FEES -                    -            -                   

Total Expenditure 441,268        8,810        450,078       

Solid Waste Fund
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



FY14-15 FY14-15 FY14-15

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Fund #

001 GENERAL FUND 2,095,897             97,068                2,192,965           

101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 781,049                (412,423)             368,626              

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,555,252             (486,318)             1,068,934           

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 441,268                8,810                  450,078              

Total Estimated Revnue 4,873,466             (792,863)             4,080,603           

001 GENERAL FUND 2,095,897             97,068                2,192,965           

101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 781,049                (412,423)             368,626              

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,555,252             (486,318)             1,068,934           

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 441,268                8,810                  450,078              

Total Appropriations 4,873,466             (792,863)             4,080,603           

All Funds
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

9/30/14 Fund Balance $882,923

FY 2015 Estimated Change $441,632

FY 2015 Est. Total Fund Balance $1,324,555

5 cent Fund Balance 6 cent Fund Balance

9/30/14 Fund Balance $432,695 9/30/14 Fund Balance $464,191

FY 2015 Estimated Change $117,768 FY 2015 Estimated Change $109,061

FY 2015 Est. Total Fund Balance $550,463 FY 2015 Est. Total Fund Balance $573,252

9/30/14 Fund Balance $38,959

FY 2015 Estimated Change (18,020)       

FY 2015 Est. Total Fund Balance $20,939

9/30/14 Fund Balance $1,220,013

FY 2015 Estimated Change ($1,028,934)

FY 2015 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance $191,079

CAFR ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

Capital Improvement Program

Statement of Estimated Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund

Transportation Fund

Solid Waste Fund

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

UMSG,LLC 8/27/20153:22 PM 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 8.a. 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 09/01/2015

August 25, 2015

Received email and will look to analyzing potential cost to implement light at D 

Road and Okeechobee.  Transmitted information to Town Engineer for very 

preliminary estimates of cost.

August 12, 2015 No activity on this item

July 15, 2015 No activity on this item

June 30, 2015 No activity on this item

May 11, 2015 No activity on this item

April 15, 2015

This office met with representatives from Minto.  Discussion points were 

covered regarding the proposed funding of the traffic control appurtenances for 

D Road and Okeechobee.  Staff will review the information and report progress 

at the June 16 Town Council meeting. 

April 1, 2015 No activity on this item

March 1, 2015
This office has received communication and we are trying to establish a date 

and time during the week of March 9th.  

February 10, 2015 No activity on this item

January 26, 2015 No activity on this item

January 14, 2015 No activity on this item

December 29, 2014

A discussion with Minto’s attorney indicated Palm Beach County would agree

for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement which may exclude

the County.

August 12, 2015 No activity on this item

July 15, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of

the letter.

June 30, 2015
No meeting has been set by SFWMD and the Town to discuss the contents of

the letter.

June 11, 2015 Staff received a proposed letter from SFWMD to the property owners on 43rd

May 27, 2015

Received a telephone call from Ken Mudd regarding a draft letter that will be 

sent and establishing a meeting date.  It is believed the draft letter will be 

forthcoming in the next week or two.

May 11, 2015 No activity.

April 14, 2015 No activity on this item.

April 1, 2015 No activity.

February 23, 2015
Ms. Hendrichsen Sandoval stated that this office will be notified in advance of a

letter will be drafted informing residents of a meeting to discuss the matter.

February 11, 2015 No activity.

January 15, 2015

This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work 

to plan their path forward.  Upon completing their planning effort, they will be 

in touch with staff.

Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for the 

funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road.

Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and Ken Mudd, 

Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management District (SFWMD) in 

reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and swale improvement on 43rd.  As I 

understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was looking to determine whether or not the Town 

would assist them in correcting a deficiency in the road and swale drainage system on the road.  The 

Town will be contacted in the future regarding the next step to be taken to correct the problem.

Page: 1 of 2 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

Town Council 

AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA

MANAGER’S REPORT ITEM NO.8.a.

MEETING DATE: 09/01/2015

January 14, 2015 No activity from SFWMD representative

December 16, 2015 No activity

June 9 2015

3. ATTACHMENTS

4. FINANCIAL IMPACT

Not applicable.

5. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Motion to receive and file report.

Page: 2 of 2 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 9.a. 

OLD BUSINESS 

Severn Trent Letter of Withdrawal 

 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 10.b. 

NEW BUSINESS 

Termination of Agreement with Palm Beach County –  

Land Development Review 

 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015



 
 

<1>> of 61 TC Agenda Packet 09/01/2015




